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                                                            Addendum # 2 
 
NJSDA 
1 West State Street 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
Phone: 609-943-5955 
Fax:  609-656-4642  
 
 
 
Date:   March 28, 2013 
 
PROJECT #:  PA-0006-C04 
 
DESCRIPTION:  New Marshall Street Elementary School 
 
                                        
This addendum shall be considered part of the Bid Documents issued in connection with the 
referenced project. Should information conflict with the Bid Documents, this Addendum shall 
supercede the relevant information in the Bid Documents. 
 

 
A. CHANGES TO THE PROCUREMENT PROCESS   

 
1. Modifications to the Request for Proposals 
 
a. REVISE:  The Authority has determined to modify the scoring ratio of price compared to all 

“other factors” from a ratio of 90% price to 10% “other factors”, in favor of a ratio 
of 80% price to 20% “other factors.”  Accordingly, the following changes reflected 
in sections b through d, below, shall reflect this modification. 

 
b. REVISE:  The second paragraph of Section 1.3 of the RFP (“Basis of Award”) shall be 

revised as follows (additions in bold and underlined text; deletions in 
strikethrough and italics): 

 
Price shall be considered significantly more important than all other factors combined, 
with price representing 90% 80% of the weighted scoring and all other factors 
representing 10% 20% of weighted scoring.  The Authority reserves the right to accept 
other than the lowest price proposal, or reject all proposals.    
 

c. REVISE: The first paragraph of Section 1.5 of the RFP (“Evaluation and Scoring Process”) 
shall be revised as follows (additions in bold and underlined text; deletions in 
strikethrough and italics): 
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For this procurement, price shall be weighted as significantly more important than all 
other factors, with price equaling 90% 80% of the overall weight, and all non-price 
factors having a combined weight of 10% 20%.   
 

d. REVISE: The first paragraph after the “CALCULATING PRICE POINTS” table included in 
Section 1.5 of the RFP (“Evaluation and Scoring Process”) shall be revised as 
follows (additions in bold and underlined text; deletions in strikethrough and 
italics): 

 
Before being combined with the non-price scores, the price scores for all bidders will 
be adjusted by a weighting factor of 90% 80% , and the scores for the non-price “other 
factors” criteria will be adjusted by a 10% 20% weighting factor.   
 
 

e. REVISE: Section 3.9 of the RFP (“Interview”) shall be revised as follows (additions in bold 
and underlined text; deletions in strikethrough and italics): 

 
The Authority may choose has determined to perform interviews with all Bidders, to 
be scheduled and conducted after technical submissions have been received.  The 
interviews will allow bidders to clarify information provided in their submissions, and 
will allow for selection committee members to ask questions about the technical 
submissions. The interviews will not be scored separately.  Information regarding the 
scheduling of interviews will follow in a subsequently-issued addendum. 
 

 
B. CHANGES TO THE PROJECT MANUAL: 

 
1. Revisions to the Specifications 

 
a. REVISE:  Specifications, Division 1, Section 01010 – Summary of Work, Section 1.4.– 

ALLOWANCE, D.1, shall be revised as follows (additions in bold and 
underlined text; deletions in strikethrough and italics): 

 
1. Excavation, stockpiling and loading for off-site disposal of all old partial concrete 

foundations, concrete, and rubble is part of this contract. The Contractor shall 
include in the lump sum bid the transportation and proper off-site disposal of 50 
tons of such material from the areas shown on the January 23, 2013 Existing 
Conditions Survey Drawing C-2, Existing Conditions. Any unused portions of 
the identified quantity will be credited back to the Owner using the unit prices 
listed in the price proposal. Transportation and proper off-site disposal of partial 
concrete foundations, concrete and rubble in excess of the 50 tons included in the 
base bid will be covered under this allowance using the unit prices established in 
the price proposal. 
 

b. REPLACE:  
 

The following Specification Sections issued with the original bid documents should be 
deleted in their entirety and replaced with the revised Specification Sections of the same 
names, issued herewith as Attachment 2.1.  
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a. Specifications, Division 10, SECTION 10210 – WALL LOUVERS 

 
 
 
C. BIDDER QUESTIONS AND NJSDA RESPONSES: 

  
 

1.  Question: 

 

The project procurement requirements require the bidder to list any additional 
subcontractors if the bidder intends to contract in the trade or other trades 
applicable to this branch, please confirm that the bidder’s named subcontractors 
are not required to list or name any sub-subcontractors that they listed 
subcontractor intends to sub-subcontract work from the trade or the branch to? 

 Answer: Confirmed.  Neither the bidder, nor the bidder’s named subcontractors are required to 
list or name any sub-subcontractors.  As noted in Item A.1.g of Addendum #1, which 
modified Section 4.2.2 of the RFP,  

When naming subcontractors in accordance with this section, a bidder is 
required to name only those subcontractors that are engaged directly by the 
Bidder (“first-tier subcontractors”).  Bidders are NOT REQUIRED to name 
any subcontractors engaged by the first-tier subcontractors or by others (e.g., 
“second-tier subcontractors” or “third-tier subcontractors.”)   

2.  Question: 

 

Under section 1 procurement review item 1.1A, the listed steel quantity is 49 
tons, we believe that value is not accurate considering the school proposed 
square footage, please advise? 

 Answer: The correct Steel quantity is 490 tons. 

3.  Question: Under section 1 procurement review item 1.1A, it requires the bidder to 
undertake a prebid review and inspection of the existing steel materials to 
determine the suitability and fitness of materials, etc., and the procurement 
section 1.1B indicate that the SDA has determined that the bidder should 
identify and subcontract the remaining fabrication and erection of the structural 
steel for $ 1,378,000, how can the SDA require that the bidder be responsible for 
verifying the steel conditions and at the mean time the SDA already decided the 
value of completing the work and request the bidders to carry on that cost, 
would not be only reasonable to figure that the entity who estimated the value of 
completing the work and determined a value of $ 1,378,000 includes the 
responsibility of the steel conditions and associated repairs if needed be? Please 
revise the specification to a reasonable expectation of the bidders, an allowance 
can be allocated by the SDA to deal with any unforeseen if needed be since that 
risk cannot be calculated by the bidders at the present time. 

 Answer: The bid documents for this Project require that bidders for this Project identify and 
subcontract with Haberle Steel to complete the fabrication and to perform the erection 
and installation of the structural steel for this Project.  Haberle Steel was the original 
supplier and fabricator of structural steel under a prior construction contract for the 
Marshall Street Project.  NJSDA has decided to utilize the previously purchased, and 
partially fabricated, structural steel (the “Existing Steel”) as part of the requirements 
for this Project. NJSDA has negotiated with Haberle Steel a package price of 
$1,378,000 for completion of the fabrication and the erection of the Existing Steel. 
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The $1,378,000 package price is a baseline cost for completion of the unperformed 
fabrication and the erection of the Existing Steel, and is premised upon an assumption 
that the existing steel is suitable for use on the Project.  The bidders should undertake 
the required prebid inspection of the Existing Steel and include in their bids the cost 
of any corrective work or reconditioning of the Existing Steel that may be needed to 
make the Existing Steel suitable for use on the Project. No allowance will be 
provided.     

4.  Question: Please confirm that the listed $ 1,378,000 includes all the steel decking and joists 
and all the structural steel elements required to accomplish the project 
completion and no other values should be included in the bidder’s estimate. 

 Answer: Structural Steel, Joist, Deck, Field Bolts, and Erection are included in the 
prenegotiated price. 

5.  Question: Please confirm that the SDA already obtained all the required paperwork from 
Haberle steel and no paperwork need to be listed in the bidder’s package for the 
steel trade since Haberle is a preselected subcontractor by the SDA, if the 
paperwork still need to be listed by the bidder, please provide the paperwork 
through the SDA to avoid any conflicts since again Haberle is the SDA’s choice. 

 Answer: No paperwork is required. 

6.  Question: 

 

Please confirm that the bidder can choose to obtain the steel from Haberle and 
hire a different subcontractor to complete the work if the bidder can secure the 
work completion cheaper than the $ 1,378,000 which will be included in the 
bidder’s overall bid, if not, please provide a legal backup to the rejection since 
under competitive public bidding regulation, the tax payers are entitled to the 
most economic qualified bids. Please confirm that the steel materials already 
procured by the SDA is available to pick up after the award if the bidder find 
other qualified bidders to complete the work as described herein. 

 Answer: 
 

No.  Bidders are required by the bid documents to engage Haberle Steel for 
completion of the fabrication and for the erection of the structural steel for this 
Project. NJSDA has determined that a sole-source procurement of steel fabrication 
and erection is protective of the interests of the Authority and the public with respect 
to optimal reutilization of materials previously purchased and procured from, and 
work previously performed and supplied by, that same vendor under the prior 
construction contract for the Marshall Street School Project.  To that end, NJSDA has 
negotiated with Haberle Steel a package price for completion of the fabrication and 
the erection of the Existing Steel.  The transport and delivery of the finished structural 
steel to the job site by Haberle Steel is anticipated and included as part of that 
negotiated steel package price.  
 

7.  Question: 

 

Please confirm that Haberle will comply with the bidder’s schedule to complete 
the project as per the specification requirement or sooner as decided by the 
bidder regarding the steel delivery and erection. 

 Answer: Haberle Steel has agreed to comply with the successful bidder’s schedule. 

8.  Question: Please advise who will be the steel erector if Haberle decide to hire a sub-
subcontractor. 
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 Answer: 
 

Kenvil United Corp, AISC Certified Steel Erector 

9.  Question: Please revise the 1.1B requirement last paragraph regarding steel storage 
charges after the bid date since if Haberle is the fabricator and erector for the $ 
1,378,000, reasonable storage charges should already be included in that cost 
since it is not common at all that the steel subcontractor gets paid for storage 
charges while fabricating the project, normally if the steel is fabricated and not 
erected for months then storage charges apply. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

Steel storage has been paid for by the NJSDA.  No additional charges are expected at 
this time. 

10.  Question: Can the constructability review duration be reduced to avoid starting the project 
in the winter months? 
 

 Answer: No modification to the constructability schedule will be made. 
 

11.  Question: Please confirm that the new project documents have been approved by DCA? 
Please advise if the bidder can utilize the already issued permits and submit to 
DCA new jackets for permit update only? 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

The revised documents are under DCA review. 
The bidders are required upon award to apply for the permits from DCA. 

12.  Question: Please advise the anticipated award date from the bid submission date? 

 Answer: 
 
 
 

The NJSDA anticipates the award of this contract to be made by June 2013 with the 
constructability NTP anticipated by June 2013 and construction NTP made by Sept 
2013 

13.  Question: Please advise who is the Construction management firm selected by the SDA for 
the project. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

SDA is currently procuring a Construction Management Firm and to be determined in 
next few months. 

14.  Question: Please confirm the project is not a LEED project especially after removing the 
geothermal wells from the project. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

Though the project is not to be submitted to the USGBC, the work shall be performed 
in accordance with Sustainable Project Requirements included in appendix. 

15.  Question: Allowance D item 1 describes that removing and disposing of ALL the old partial 
concrete foundations, concrete and rubble is allowance work, while the 
structural drawings that the existing foundation and rebar, etc could be reused 
after the rust is removed; please advise which one is to include in our bid? The 
installed concrete foundations have been exposed to 3 winters and all the rebar is 
rusted and if any need to utilized, the engineer of record must certify acceptance 
of the work in place and exact quantity and method of rebar cleaning should be 
provided to be estimated? If the allowance description is more accurate than the 
structural drawings and in fact all the installed work must be removed and 
disposed of site, please confirm that the allowance would then also include all the 
subgrade preparation including excavation of unacceptable subgrade, 
replacement of removed materials, removal and disposal of all installed concrete 
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and associated rebar, etc since the subgrade conditions is not accessible for 
verification? 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

The Allowance addresses debris found on site and does not reference the previously 
installed foundations.  The contract is to follow the structural drawings and direction 
indicated.  
 

16.  Question: Please confirm that the installed concrete retaining wall along the railroad side 
that have been installed for at least 6 years by the SDA is acceptable to the 
engineer of record? 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

The NJSDA has determined that the wall as installed is acceptable and the contractor 
must follow contract documents as to completing the wall. 
 

17.  Question: Please confirm that the CAD files will be made available to the contractor at no 
cost? 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

CAD drawings will be provided at no cost to the successful bidder upon Construction 
NTP, if required and requested by the General Contractor. 

18.  Question: Neither geotechnical nor environmental reports showing interpretation, 
recommendations and conclusion were attached to the bid documents 
representing the new borings performed by Maser and environmental testing by 
Test America, only April 12th, 2012 report was included from Maser but doesn’t 
address the boring or Test America reports, please provide? 
 

 Answer: 
 
 
 

Appendix A – Subsurface Exploration Data provided in the Bid documents includes 
the geotechnical and environmental boring data. 
 
 

19.  Question: The site drawings show the transformer pad being built by the contractor, from 
prior experience dealing with PSEG, they mandate providing their own pads for 
contractor’s installation, please advise? 
 

 Answer: 
 

Contractor is to follow contract documents. 

20.  Question: Please confirm all permanent utilities fees’ are by the SDA or Paterson BOE, if 
not, please provide allowance since it is impossible for the contractor to get those 
estimate from the utility companies. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

NJSDA will pay the utilities connection fees once invoice presented by utility 
companies. 

21.  Question: Please advise the intent of having the “Tenax Beacon Plus Safety Fence” shown 
on details drawing C-15? 
 

 Answer: 
 
 
 

The Tenax Beacon Plus Safety Fence is a visible demarcation barrier required by 
NJDEP that is part of the engineering controls for the site’s environmental capping 
design. This is discussed in the Project description within the site specifications 
Section 02000 item 3.0. 
 

22.  Question: The specification calls for a “snap locking” panel.  The majority of the project is 
large radius curved panels.  You cannot curve a snaplok style panel.  As a panel 
manufacturer I am recommending that you issue an addendum based on a 
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mechanically fastened T-Panel, i.e. Imetco Series 300.  This system will also 
provide you with 80’+ panel lengths therefore avoiding any lap joints on the roof.  
You should also require that the manufacturer provide a 25 year NDL, or No 
Dollar Limit, warranty and a 25 year finish warranty.  This metal panel system 
from Imetco is the highest performing metal roof system on the market.  For a 
full listing of projects in the Northeast, please don’t hesitate to reach out. 
 

 Answer: 
 

Imetco is an acceptable substitution. 

23.  Question: The Price Proposal form shows no reference to the cost allowances and the unit 
prices referenced by Specification Section 01010-Summary of Work. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

No unit prices are required.  As specified in the price proposal form, section E, item 
number 3, the bidder must include the price of allowances listed in the Specifications 
and/or by Addenda (um) in the Base Bid Price.  
 

24.  Question: Please confirm that all work associated with the removal and disposal of 
impacted or contaminated materials, as referenced by Specification Section 
02250-Excavation, Handling and Removal of Impacted Materials and 
Specification Section 02260-Waste Disposal Requirements, is work to be 
performed upon authorization as described by Cost Allowance D and is not to be 
included in the Base Bid price. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 
 

All work associated with the removal and disposal of excess materials which cannot 
be utilized under the engineering cap, as referenced by Specification Section 02250- 
Excavation, Handling and Removal of Impacted Materials and Specification Section 
02260-Waste Disposal Requirements is Base Bid work.  All material excavated 
during the installation of any on-site utility system shall be removed from the site and 
replaced with certified clean fill material as part of the Base Bid. 
 

25.  Question: Please confirm that the work associated with the excavation to approved 
subgrade and compacted fill as shown by Drawing S-4 in the detail entitled 
“Existing Footing Bearing Capacity Remediation Detail” is work to be 
performed upon authorization as described by Cost Allowance D and is not to be 
included in the Base Bid price. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 
 

All work associated with the excavation to approved subgrade and compacted fill as 
shown by Drawing S-4 in the detail entitled “Existing Footing Bearing Capacity 
Remediation Detail” is Base Bid work.  Cost Allowance D shall be utilized if old 
partial concrete foundations, concrete, and rubble are encountered in excess of the 50 
tons of material from the areas shown on the Drawing C-2, Existing Conditions.  This 
work is unrelated to the work necessary to remediate existing school footers in need 
of bearing capacity remediation. 
 

26.  Question: The project specification manual appears to be missing Specification Sections 
07135 and 07140 as referenced by the waterproofing notes shown by 
Architectural Drawing A-0.7. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

Liquid Boot will act as the vapor barrier.  Disregard references to Sections 07135 & 
07140 as discussed on the waterproofing notes on drawing A-0.7 

27.  Question: Furnish structural details showing the relationship of the fiberglass sewage 
ejector basin shown by Plumbing Detail No. 2/P-3 to the Basement floor slab, 
including the means of terminating the liquid boot and/or integrally bonded 
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sheet membrane below the slab to the ejector; and confirm whether any concrete 
antiflotation encasement is required at the sewage ejector basin, and if so, 
furnish details for same. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 
 

The ejector is not designed to be within a concrete pit.  It is specified with an anti-
flotation ring and is to be installed per manufacturer’s instructions.  Coordinate Liquid 
Boot termination with liquid boot manufacturer. 

28.  Question: Specification Section 03300, paragraph 2.4 E, refers to a requirement for a vapor 
barrier under all slab on grade, the waterproofing notes shown by Architectural 
Drawing A-0.7 refer to a requirement for a pre-applied integrally bonded sheet 
membrane to the blind side of the entire Basement slab and elevator pit as 
specified by Section 07135, and Specification Section 02989-Passive Remedial 
System refers to a requirement for a liquid boot membrane. Please furnish a 
typical slab on grade sub base detail showing the interrelationship between these 
different barriers. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

Liquid Boot will act as the vapor barrier.  Disregard references to Sections 07135 & 
07140 as discussed on the waterproofing notes on drawing A-0.7 

29.  Question: Furnish structural details for the concrete features at the acid neutralization 
tank as referenced by Plumbing Detail No. 8/P-12. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 
 

Concrete features to be built per information provided on the P-12 drawing. Concrete 
strength for the acid tank to be the same as the grease interceptor (3000 psi).  Rebar is 
not required. The contractor to also follow the tank manufacturer’s installation 
instructions. 
 

30.  Question: Furnish structural details for the concrete features at the grease interceptor as 
referenced by Plumbing Detail No. 10/P-12. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 
 

Concrete features to be built per information provided on the P-12 drawing. Rebar is 
not required.  The contractor to also follow the interceptor's manufacturer’s 
installation instructions. 

31.  Question: Detail identification numbers appear to be missing from all of the details shown 
by Architectural Drawings A-9.3, A-9.4 and A-9.5. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

Disregard empty circles on the titles.  Plans are tied back to overall floor plan per  
name/ number tag. 

32.  Question: Specification Section 02620-Subdrainage, paragraph 1.01 A.2 refers to a slab-on-
grade drainage system, but the documents show no reference to this 
requirement. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

Specification Section 02620 Sub-drainage relates to the retaining wall and building 
footing drains as shown on the Civil plans and details. 
 

33.  Question: The NJ Transit insurance requirements indicated by the Deed of Easement, 
Article 8, do not agree with those indicated by Exhibit F-General Requirements 
for Working Within the Right of Way and the NJ Transit Temporary Access 
document. Which is correct? 
 



Addendum #:2                                                                                           Page 9 of 12 
Project #:  PA-0006-C04                                     03/28/2013 

 Answer: 
 

The Insurance requirements of Article 9 of the General Conditions for the 
construction contract for this Project incorporate New Jersey Transit’s current 
insurance requirements and supersede those insurance requirements included in both 
the Deed of Easement, Article 8, and those included in the Exhibit F document.  The 
contractor’s fulfillment of the insurance requirements of Article 9 of the General 
Conditions will satisfy the insurance requirements of New Jersey Transit.  
 

34.  Question: Structural Drawing S-1D shows no reference to the foundation work for the 
loading dock and trash enclosure areas. 
 

 Answer: 
 

Follow Details on sheet A-5.2.  See Attachment #2.2 for revised Drawing A-5.2  

35.  Question: Structural Drawing S-1D shows no information for the exterior retaining walls 
and stair at Door S101C. 
 

 Answer: 
 

Follow Details on sheet A-0.6. See Attachment #2.2 for revised Drawing A-5.2 

36.  Question: Furnish structural details for the concrete pad at the cooling tower as referenced 
by HVAC Detail No. 2/HVAC-2. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 

Contractor shall hire structural engineer to design cooling tower support rails and 
concrete pad as required by the cooling tower manufacturer.   Provide signed / sealed 
drawings by a N.J. licensed engineer. 
 

37.  Question: Furnish structural details for the planter retaining walls and stairs referenced by 
Plaza Plan Detail No. 1 on Architectural Site Plan Drawing A-0.6. 
 

 Answer: 
 

Follow Details on sheet A-0.6.  See Attachment #2.2 for revised Drawing A-5.2 

38.  Question: Specification Section 11451-Residential Appliances indicates a requirement for 
refrigerators at Faculty Dining and the Health Prep Room. Architectural 
Drawing A-9.2 indicates that the refrigerator at the Health Prep Room will be 
supplied by the District. Please confirm whether the District will also supply the 
refrigerator at Faculty Dining. 
 

 Answer: 
 
 
 

Disregard reference to district providing refrigerator on the A-9.2 drawing.  Follow 
Specification section 11451. 

D. CHANGES TO THE DRAWINGS: 
 

 
1. REPLACE: Substitute following drawings, noted as Revision #10, dated 03/25/2013, 

issued herewith as Attachment 2.2.  
  

a. ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS: 
 
A-0.6  ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN 

A-1.1  FIRST FLOOR NORTH WING PARTIAL PLAN 

A-1.3  CENTRAL WING PARTIAL FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

A-1.5  FIRST FLOOR SOUTH WING PLAN 

A-1.6  SECOND FLOOR NORTH WING PLAN 
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A-1.7  SECOND FLOOR NORTH WING PLAN 

A-1.8  SECOND FLOOR CENTRAL WING PLAN 

A-1.9  SOUTH WING UPPER GYMNASIUM & CAFETORIUM 

A-2.0  ROOF PLAN 

A-3.0  ELEVATIONS & DETAILS 

A-3.1  ELEVATIONS & DETAILS 

A-3.2  ELEVATIONS 

A-3.3 ELEVATIONS 

A-4.0  BUILDING AND WALL SECTIONS 

A-4.1  BUILDING AND WALL SECTIONS, MEDIA CENTER 

A-4.1A  BUILDING AND WALL SECTIONS, MEDIA CENTER 

A·4.3  BUILDING AND WALL SECTIONS 

A·4.4  BUILDING AND WALL SECTIONS 

A-4.6  BUILDING AND WALL SECTIONS 

A-4.7  BUILDING AND WALL SECTIONS 

A-4.8  BUILDING AND WALL SECTIONS, CAFETORIUM 

A-4.9  BUILDING AND WALL SECTIONS 

A-5.0  STAIR PLANS, & SECTIONS STAIRWELL 1 

A-5.1  STAIR PLANS & SECTIONS STAIRWELLS 3 & 4 

A-5.2  STAIR PLANS & SECTIONS STAIRWELL 5, STAGE, GYM & KITCHEN 

A-5.3  ENLARGED PLANS, VESTIBULE 1, LOBBY AREA & STAIRWELL 2 

A-6.2  DOOR SCHEDULE 

A-6.3  DOOR AND VISION PANEL TYPES 

A-7.4  FIRST FLOOR CENTRAL & SOUTH WING REFLECTED CEILING PLAN 

A-7.5  FIRST FLOOR SOUTH WING REFLECTED CEILING PLAN 

 

b. STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS: 
 
S-3A  ROOF FRAMING PLAN '3A' NORTH WING 

  

c. ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS: 
 
E-1  ELECTRICAL SYMBOLS, NOTES & LEGENDS 

E-9  ELECTRICAL PANEL SCHEDULES 

E-11  ELECTRICAL PANEL SCHEDULES 

EP-8 SECOND FLOOR PARTIAL POWER PLAN 

 
E. ATTACHMENTS:  

 
Attachment 2.1  Specifications 

 
Attachment 2.2 Drawings    
 
Attachment 2.3 OBSERVATION REPORT For Existing Footings and Foundation Walls 
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                    <Addendum # 2> 
 
NJSDA 
1 West State Street 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
Phone: 609-943-5955 
Fax: 609-656-4642  
 
 
Date:   March 28, 2013 
 
PROJECT #:   PA-0006-C04 
 
DESCRIPTION: New Marshall Street Elementary School 
 
 
Addendum No. 2 
 
 
Acknowledgement of Receipt of Addendum 
 
Contractor must acknowledge the receipt of the Addendum by signing in the space provided below 
and returning via fax to (609-656-4642) or email to djohnson@njsda.gov). Signed acknowledgement 
must be received prior to the Bid Due Date. Acknowledgement of the Addendum must be made in 
Section E.6 of the Price Proposal Submission. 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________     ________________________ 
Signature       Print Name 
 
 
 
_____________________     ________________________ 
Company Name      Date 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MARSHALL STREET ELEMENTARY SCHOOL  
PATERSON, NJ 
DESIGN IDEAS GROUP ARCHITECTURE + PLANNING, LLC 2012-213 

WALL LOUVERS 10210 - 1 NJSDA Project No. PA-0006-C04 
 

SECTION 10210 – WALL LOUVERS 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.1 SUMMARY 

A. Section Includes: 

1. Fixed, extruded-aluminum wall louvers. 

1.2 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Design:  Design louvers, including comprehensive engineering analysis by a qualified engineer, 
using structural performance requirements and design criteria indicated. 

B. Structural Performance:  Louvers shall withstand the effects of gravity loads and the following 
loads and stresses within limits and under conditions indicated without permanent deformation 
of louver components, noise or metal fatigue caused by louver blade rattle or flutter, or 
permanent damage to fasteners and anchors. 

1. Wind Loads:  Determine loads based on a uniform pressure of 30 lb./sq. ft. (1435 Pa), 
acting inward or outward. 

C. Louver Performance Ratings:  Provide louvers complying with requirements specified, as 
demonstrated by testing manufacturer's stock units identical to those provided, except for length 
and width according to AMCA 500-L. 

1.3 SUBMITTALS 

A. Product Data:  For each type of product indicated. 

1. For louvers specified to bear AMCA seal, include printed catalog pages showing 
specified models with appropriate AMCA Certified Ratings Seals. 

B. Shop Drawings:  For louvers and accessories.  Include plans, elevations, sections, details, and 
attachments to other work.  Show frame profiles and blade profiles, angles, and spacing. 

C. Samples:  For each type of metal finish required. 

D. Submittal:  For louvers indicated to comply with structural performance requirements and 
design criteria indicated. 

E. Product Test Reports:  Based on tests performed according to AMCA 500-L. 



MARSHALL STREET ELEMENTARY SCHOOL  
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PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

2.1 MATERIALS 

A. Aluminum Extrusions:  ASTM B 221M, Alloy 6063-T5. 

B. Aluminum Sheet:  ASTM B 209M, Alloy 3003 with temper as required for forming. 

C. Fasteners:  Use types and sizes to suit unit installation conditions. 

1. For fastening aluminum, use aluminum or 300 series stainless-steel fasteners. 

2.2 FABRICATION, GENERAL 

A. Fabricate frames, including integral sills, to fit in openings of sizes indicated, with allowances 
made for fabrication and installation tolerances, adjoining material tolerances, and perimeter 
sealant joints. 

B. Join frame members to each other and to fixed louver blades with fillet welds concealed from 
view welds, threaded fasteners, or both, as standard with louver manufacturer unless otherwise 
indicated or size of louver assembly makes bolted connections between frame members 
necessary. 

 
 

2.3 FIXED, EXTRUDED-ALUMINUM LOUVERS 

A. Horizontal High Performance Storm-Resistant Louver  

1. Manufacturers:   

a) Architectural Louvers; Model E4WH.  (basis of design) 

b) Or approved equal. 

2. Louver Depth: 4 inches (100 mm) 
3. Blade Profile: Front horizontal drainable blade with gutter for water diversion to jambs.   

Rear vertical chevron blade (sight proof). 
4. Frame and Blade Nominal Thickness:  Not less than 0.060 inch (1.52 mm) for blades and 

0.080 inch (2.03 mm) for frames. 
5. Louver Performance Ratings: 

a. Free Area:  Not less than 8.0 sq. ft. (0.74 sq. m) for 48-inch- (1220-mm-) wide by 
48-inch- (1220-mm-) high louver. 

b. Air Performance:  Not more than 0.15-inch wg (37-Pa) static pressure drop at 800-
fpm (4.1-m/s) free-area velocity. 
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c. Wind-Driven Rain Performance:  Not less than 100 percent effectiveness when 
subjected to a rainfall rate of 3 inches (75 mm) per hour and a wind speed of 29 
mph (13 m/s) at a core-area intake velocity of 690 fpm (3.5 m/s).  Not less than 99 
percent effectiveness when subjected to a rainfall rate of 8 inches (200 mm) per 
hour and a wind speed of 50 mph (22 m/s) at a core-area intake velocity of 690 
fpm (3.5 m/s). 

6. AMCA Seal:  Mark units with AMCA Certified Ratings Seal. 
 
 

2.4 LOUVER SCREENS 

A. General:  Provide screen at each exterior louver. 

B. Louver Screen Frames:  Same kind and form of metal as indicated for louver to which screens 
are attached. 

C. Louver Screening: Same kind of metal as indicated for louver. 

1. Insect Screening:  Aluminum, 16 x 18 square mesh, 0.011-inch (0.28-mm) wire. 
2. Bird Screening:  Flattened, expanded aluminum, 3/4 by 0.050 inch (19 by 1.27 mm) 

thick. 

2.5 ALUMINUM FINISHES 

A. High-Performance Organic Finish: 3-coat fluoropolymer finish complying with AAMA 2605 
and containing not less than 70 percent PVDF resin by weight in color coat.  Prepare, pre-treat, 
and apply coating to exposed metal surfaces to comply with coating and resin manufacturers' 
written instructions. 

1. Color and Gloss: As selected by Architect from manufacturer's full range. 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

3.1 INSTALLATION 

A. Locate and place louvers and vents level, plumb, and at indicated alignment with adjacent work. 

B. Use concealed anchorages where possible.  Provide brass or lead washers fitted to screws where 
required to protect metal surfaces and to make a weather-tight connection. 

C. Provide perimeter reveals and openings of uniform width for sealants and joint fillers, as 
indicated. 

D. Repair damaged finishes so no evidence remains of corrective work.  Return items that cannot 
be refinished in the field to the factory and refinish entire unit or provide new units. 
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E. Protect galvanized and nonferrous-metal surfaces that will be in contact with concrete, masonry, 
or dissimilar metals from corrosion and galvanic action by applying a heavy coating of 
bituminous paint. 

END OF SECTION 10210 
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At the request of DI Group Architecture, Carline Vales from our office, accompanied by 

Mr. Edward Nyzio of New Jersey School Development Authority (NJSDA), visited the 

above mentioned site on April 3, 2012.  M. Jeff Ling, PE and Carline Vales from our 

office, accompanied by Mr. Edward Nyzio, revisited that site on September 12, 2012.  

The existing construction was terminated at mid-session of the foundation construction in 

2010.  The contractor was constructing the exterior wall footing at all areas.  There is 

approximately 50% of the exterior foundation wall and footing constructed along with a 

limited number of interior footings.   

 

This office prepared a consolidated foundation plan with color coded label with yellow 

marking which indicates the portion of foundation wall and footing construction that 

were completed.  The pink marking indicates the location that the soil bearing capacity of 

the footing is questionable and requires a soil engineer to review existing soil bearing 

capacity. See Appendix II.    

 

The following is the detailed description of observation on each wing: 

 

North Wing 

 

a) Media Center  

 

The exterior wall footings and pier footings were poured on the North-West 

corner of the building.  However, some of the footing bottoms are exposed to the 

weather.  See Photo No. 1.  Some of the footings were covered with construction 

debris.  See Photo No. 2.  Some vegetation was growing adjacent to the foundation. 

See Photo No. 3.  Most of the foundation walls above those footing were installed and 

filled solid with concrete except at Column Line 1 (A.7-B.1), B.1 (1-1.1), 1.1 (B.1-

C.2).  The last course of concrete masonry block at those locations was not filled 

solid with concrete.  See Photo No. 3.  All anchor rods were rusted and some of them 

lost their threads.  See Photo No. 4. The soil near the following wall and column 

footings locations must be checked for its bearing capacity:  
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a) Column 2-A.0 

b) Column and wall on Line C.2 (from 1.1 to 1.4) 

c) Columns 4-D and 5-D 

 

b) Basement 

 

The footings for the basement wall on the North Wing are approximately 70% 

complete.  The steel rebars for the basement wall were erected at some areas above 

those footings.  However, those rebars were not properly protected. See Photo No. 5.  

The remaining area of the basement wall footings have rebar dowels exposed and the 

construction joint key was filled with discolored debris.  See Photo No. 6.  The 

elevator pit area was filled with water.  The footing for the elevator pit could not be 

verified during the observation.  See Photo No. 7.   It appears the soil was caved in on 

the East side of the basement.  See Photo No. 8.  The water was pumped out prior to 

the observation on September 12 and a layer of crushed stone was observed at the 

bottom of the pit.  We tested the existing condition that was filled with water by 

poking the ground with a rebar.  It appears the ground was still solid with a thin layer 

of mud above.  See Photo 9 and 10.  Before restarting the construction at this area, the 

existing ground must be completely dry and additional crushed stone must be laid 

down prior to pouring new concrete for future construction.   

 

The existing footing formwork and fabricated rebars that are exposed at the 

surrounding area should be abandoned and reconstructed.   

 

Central Wing  

 

The foundation wall, wall footings and column footings were poured on the West 

side of the building.  Wherever the foundation wall and footing were terminated, the 

rebar dowels from the footing were exposed to the weather.  There are some large stone 

back filling adjacent to the existing walls.  See Photo No. 11.  The pier footings at the 

corner of the entrance were exposed and appeared to have some soil erosion.  See Photo 
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No. 12.  Soil erosion was observed at column footings such at Column Line 4.1 (F, F.3, 

F.7 and G) and Line 5.1 (H, H.4 and L.1).  The soil bearing capacity on the exterior side 

of those columns should be verified by a soil engineer.   Some footings were formed with 

the rebar cage, but without concrete.  See Photo No. 13.  

  

South Wing  

 

The footings and foundation wall for the auxiliary gym was complete.  However, some of 

the footing bottoms were exposed to the weather and soil erosion occurred adjacent to the 

footing.  See Photo No. 14.  Some of the footings at this area were not visible because of 

the back filling next to the existing wall.  Most of those areas have vegetation adjacent to 

the footings.  See Photo No. 15.  The soil bearing should be verified by a soil engineer at 

the areas along the exterior side of Column Line K on Column Lines 6.6, 7.5 and 8.2. See 

Photos 16 and 17.  Most of the block walls in this area have rebar dowels from the 

footing, but are not filled solid with concrete.   

 

Conclusion 

 

Based on the noted condition, the following is our finding and recommendation:  

 

1. All the anchor rods in place were rusted and lost some of the threads.  They 

should be cut out and replaced with epoxy anchors.   

 

2. All exposed rebars in the basement area and dowels above the foundation wall 

were rusted.  Those existing rebars could be reused.  However, they should be 

brushed clean prior to the construction of the new walls.   

 

3. The attached drawing “AS-Built Foundation Plan” (Appendix II) indicates the 

existing footing and foundation wall have been constructed.  The area marked in 

yellow shows the footing has been built.  In general, the structural integrity of the 

foundation walls in place appears to be in sound condition.  There is no crack on 
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the foundation observed during the site visits.  The majority of the footings were 

bearing on crushed stone, soil or weathered shale, which appears to be sufficient 

to support the future loading.  However, there are some locations of the existing 

footing due to water erosion, indicated in pink on the drawing, where the exterior 

side of those footing soil bearing capacity should be verified by a soil engineer. 

   

4. All formwork on site at present should be replaced prior to casting new concrete.   

 

5. The concrete block walls below grade should be filled solid with concrete.  The 

contractor should remove all debris inside the existing block wall prior to filling 

solid with concrete at the location where it is still missing. 
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Appendix I 

 

Photographs  
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Photo No. 1  

 

 

 

Photo No. 2  
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Photo No. 3  

 

 

 

Photo No. 4  
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Photo No. 5  

 

 

 

Photo No. 6  
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Photo No. 7  

 

 

 

Photo No. 8  
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Photo No. 9 (09-12-12) 

 

 

 

Photo 10 (09-12-12) 
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Photo No. 11 

 

 

 

Photo No. 12 
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Photo No. 13 

 

 

Photo No. 14 
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Photo No. 15 

 

 
Photo 16 (09-12-12) 
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Photo 17 (09-12-12) 
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Appendix II 

 

As-Built Foundation Plans 
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